Screening women for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings.

Taft, A, O'Doherty, L, Hegarty, K, Ramsay, J, Davidson, L & Feder, G

Published PDF deposited in Coventry University's Repository

Original citation:

Taft, A, O'Doherty, L, Hegarty, K, Ramsay, J, Davidson, L & Feder, G 2013, 'Screening women for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings.' *The Cochrane Library* vol 4.

https://dx.doi.org/10.1002/14651858.CD007007.pub2

Cochrane Library and Wiley

Copyright © and Moral Rights are retained by the author(s) and/ or other copyright owners. A copy can be downloaded for personal non-commercial research or study, without prior permission or charge. This item cannot be reproduced or quoted extensively from without first obtaining permission in writing from the copyright holder(s). The content must not be changed in any way or sold commercially in any format or medium without the formal permission of the copyright holders.

Screening women for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings (Review)

Taft A, O'Doherty L, Hegarty K, Ramsay J, Davidson L, Feder G



This is a reprint of a Cochrane review, prepared and maintained by The Cochrane Collaboration and published in *The Cochrane Library* 2013, Issue 4

http://www.thecochranelibrary.com



[Intervention Review]

Screening women for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings

Angela Taft¹, Lorna O'Doherty², Kelsey Hegarty², Jean Ramsay³, Leslie Davidson⁴, Gene Feder⁵

¹Mother and Child Health Research, La Trobe University, Victoria, Australia. ²Department of General Practice, The University of Melbourne, Melbourne, Australia. ³Centre for Primary Health Care and Public Health, Barts and The London School of Medicine and Dentistry, Queen Mary, University of London, London, UK. ⁴Department of Epidemiology, Mailman School of Public Health, Columbia University, New York, NY, USA. ⁵School of Social and Community Medicine, University of Bristol, Bristol, UK

Contact address: Angela Taft, Mother and Child Health Research, La Trobe University, 215 Franklin Street, Melbourne, Victoria, 3000, Australia. a.taft@latrobe.edu.au.

Editorial group: Cochrane Developmental, Psychosocial and Learning Problems Group.

Publication status and date: New, published in Issue 4, 2013.

Review content assessed as up-to-date: 5 February 2013.

Citation: Taft A, O'Doherty L, Hegarty K, Ramsay J, Davidson L, Feder G. Screening women for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings. *Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews* 2013, Issue 4. Art. No.: CD007007. DOI: 10.1002/14651858.CD007007.pub2.

Copyright © 2013 The Cochrane Collaboration. Published by John Wiley & Sons, Ltd.

ABSTRACT

Background

Intimate partner violence (IPV) damages individuals, their children, communities, and the wider economic and social fabric of society. Some governments and professional organisations recommend screening all women for intimate partner violence rather than asking only women with symptoms (case-finding); however, what is the evidence that screening interventions will increase identification, and referral to support agencies, or improve women's subsequent wellbeing and not cause harm?

Objectives

To assess the effectiveness of screening for intimate partner violence conducted within healthcare settings for identification, referral to support agencies and health outcomes for women.

Search methods

We searched the following databases in July 2012: CENTRAL (2012, Issue 6), MEDLINE (1948 to September Week June Week 3 2012), EMBASE (1980 to Week 28 2012), MEDLINE In-Process (3 July 2012), DARE (2012, Issue 2), CINAHL (1937 to current), PsycINFO (1806 to June Week 4 2012), Sociological Abstracts (1952 to current) and ASSIA (1987 to October 2010). In addition we searched the following trials registers: *meta*Register of Controlled Trials (*m*RCT) (to July 2012), and International Clinical Trials Registry Platform (ICTRP), ClinicalTrials.gov, Australian New Zealand Clinical Trials Registry and the International Standard Randomised Controlled Trial Number Register to August 2010. We also searched the reference lists of articles and websites of relevant organisations.

Selection criteria

Randomised or quasi-randomised trials assessing the effectiveness of IPV screening where healthcare professionals screened women face-to-face or were informed of results of screening questionnaires, compared with usual care (which included screening for other purposes).

Data collection and analysis

Two review authors independently assessed the risk of bias in the trials and undertook data extraction. For binary outcomes, we calculated a standardised estimation of the risk ratio (RR) and for continuous data, either a mean difference (MD) or standardised mean difference (SMD). All are presented with a 95% confidence interval (CI).

Main results

We included 11 trials that recruited 13,027 women overall. Six of 10 studies were assessed as being at high risk of bias.

When data from six comparable studies were combined (n = 3564), screening increased identification of victims/survivors (RR 2.33; 95% CI 1.40 to 3.89), particularly in antenatal settings (RR 4.26; 95% CI 1.76 to 10.31).

Only three studies measured referrals to support agencies (n = 1400). There is no evidence that screening increases such referrals, as although referral numbers increased in the screened group, actual numbers were very small and crossed the line of no effect (RR 2.67; 95% CI 0.99 to 7.20).

Only two studies measured women's experience of violence after screening (one at three months, the other at six, 12 and 18 months after screening) and found no significant reduction of abuse.

Only one study measured adverse effects and data from this study suggested that screening may not cause harm. This same study showed a trend towards mental health benefit, but the results did not reach statistical significance.

There was insufficient evidence on which to judge whether screening increases take up of specialist services, and no studies included economic evaluation.

Authors' conclusions

Screening is likely to increase identification rates but rates of referral to support agencies are low and as yet we know little about the proportions of false measurement (negatives or positives). Screening does not appear to cause harm, but only one study examined this outcome. As there is an absence of evidence of long-term benefit for women, there is insufficient evidence to justify universal screening in healthcare settings. Studies comparing screening versus case finding (with or without advocacy or therapeutic interventions) for women's long-term wellbeing would better inform future policies in healthcare settings.

PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY

Screening women for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings

Women who have experienced physical, psychological or sexual violence from an intimate partner (for example, husband, boyfriend, ex-husband or ex-boyfriend) can suffer poor physical and mental health, poor pregnancy outcomes and premature death. Their children and families can also suffer. The effects of violence often result in women attending healthcare settings. Some people have argued that healthcare professionals should routinely ask all women attending a healthcare setting whether they have experienced violence from their partner or ex-partner. They argue that this approach (known as universal screening) might encourage women who would not otherwise do so, to disclose abuse, or to recognise their experience as 'abuse'. In turn, this would enable the healthcare professional to provide immediate support or refer them to specialist help, or both. Some governments and health organisations recommend universal screening for intimate partner violence (IPV). Others argue that such screening should be targeted to high risk groups, such as pregnant women attending antenatal clinics (targeted screening is known as 'selective screening').

We carried out this review to find out two things. First, whether there was any evidence that IPV screening increases the number of women identified and the number referred on to specialist services. Second, whether screening results in health benefits to women or causes any harm.

We found 11 studies that assessed the effectiveness of IPV screening where healthcare professionals screened women face-to-face or were informed of results of screening questionnaires, compared with usual care. No study compared the benefit of universal screening versus selective screening. All the studies were conducted in high income countries. The studies looked at screening in hospitals and in community settings. Screening methods included questionnaires (paper and computer based) completed by women themselves or face-to-face screening. No study took into account differences in how much abuse women were experiencing, or whether they were able or ready to take action - something that might affect the likelihood of disclosing abuse. Further, none looked at the sustainability of screening by healthcare professionals.

Screening doubled the likelihood that abused women were identified, but did not increase the numbers referred for specialist help. Both the numbers identified and referred for support were low. Screening did not reduce the level of violence experienced by women or improve women's health and wellbeing at any time point from three to 18 months after the screening. One study reported no evidence of harm. The remaining ten studies did not address the issue of harmful consequences. We do not know if screening increases take up of specialist services. None of the studies measured how much it costs to deliver screening. We conclude that there is insufficient evidence to justify universal screening for intimate partner violence in healthcare settings.